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Steven D. Grierson
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Terry A. Coffing, Esg. .
Nevada Bar No. 4949
Rachel S. Tygret, Esq.
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Attorneys for Cristina Hinds

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CRISTINA HINDS,
Plaintiff, Case No.: D-18-571065-D
Dept. No.: C
VS.
CRAIG A. MUELLER,
Defendant.

REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFFFSMOTION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE
WHY DEFENDANT SHOULD NOT BE HELD IN CONTEMPT FOR VIOLATION OF
THISCOURT'SORDERSAND FORATTORNEY FEESAND COSTS; OPPOSITION
TO DEFENDANT'SCOUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY DECREE OF DIVORCE AND

MARITAL SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH REGARD TO EQUALIZATION
PAYMENT TO CRISTINA HINDSDUE TO CRISTINA HINDS MISAPPROPRIATION
OF COMMUNITY FUNDS; FOR SANCTIONS; AND FOR ATTORNEYSFEESAND
OTHER RELATED RELIEF

Plaintiff, Cristina Hinds (“Cristina’) by and through her attorneys of record, Terry A.
Coffing, Esg. and Rachel S. Tygret, Esq. of Marquis Aurbach Coffing, hereby submits her Reply
in Support of her Motion for Order to Show Cause and Opposition to Plaintiff’s Countermotion.
111
111
111
111
111
111
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This Reply is based upon the Points and Authorities below, the attached exhibits, any and
all pleadings and papers on file in this matter, and any oral argument to take place at the hearing.
Dated this 27th day of November, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By _ /g Terry A. Coffing
Terry A. Coffing, Esg.
Nevada Bar No. 4949
Rachel S. Tygret, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14120
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorney(s) for Cristina Hinds

l. MEMORANDUM OF POINTSAND AUTHORITIES

A. INTRODUCTION

As this Court is aware, the parties to this case, CRISTINA HINDS (hereinafter
“Cristind’) and CRAIG A. MUELLER (hereinafter “Craig”), were divorced by Decree of
Divorce (the “Decree’) filed with this Court on July 29, 2019. The Decree of Divorce was
predicated on the terms and conditions that were mutually agreed upon between both Cristina
and Craig and was drafted after months of discovery, depositions, and negotiations between the
parties and their respective counsel.

Craig is now attempting to claim that the MSA and Decree need to be modified because:
(1) despite being represented by competent counsel (and being an attorney himself) and having
an opportunity to review both documents, Craig “had no idea” about some of the terms in the
agreement (such as taking on the obligation for Cristina’s vehicle); (2) that despite being an
owner with unfettered access to the accounts in dispute (as well as this particular subject being
discussed ad nauseam during Cristina' s deposition and during the final negotiations), he was

completely unaware of the funds that Cristina allegedly misappropriated at the time the Decree
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was signed®; and (3) that he should not be obligated to pay Cristina the agreed upon equalization
payment.

The truth is that Craig was more than aware of the terms of the divorce and had ample
time to review the MSA and Decree of Divorce prior to signing the same. Based on the
countless number of outright lies embedded in Craig’'s Opposition and Countermotion, it is clear
that Craig never intended on honoring his obligations under the MSA and intends on embroiling
the Parties in unending litigation in an effort to shirk his obligations to Cristina and their minor
children.

B. LEGAL ARGUMENT

1. An Order To Show Causeis Appropriatein thisMatter against Craiqg
A. Muédler

It's extremely difficult to respond to Craig's Opposition and Countermotion when its
solely predicated on unsupported “facts’ and fails to actually oppose the underlying Motion. In
fact, Craig does not even dispute that he has not paid hisfinancial obligation to Cristina. Instead,
Craig attempts to obfuscate the issues by arguing that he was “unaware’ of his obligations
(despite signing the MSA and Decree of Divorce) therefore he is entitled to a modification.

a. Cristina Did Not Misappropriate Funds Entitling Craig to an
Offset

Craig claims that it was not until after the Decree of Divorce was entered that he
“learned” of Cristina's alleged violation of the JPI. The joint accounts were constantly discussed
and at issue in this matter.? In fact, Craig was a joint-owner of the accounts, had access to the
accounts, and was even provided with statements during discovery. The fact that, after months
of discovery and the disclosure of thousands of bank statements, Craig is only now claiming that
Cristina somehow managed to “misappropriate” hundreds of thousands of dollars without his

knowledge, is completely disingenuous and an outright lie.

! Cristina denies and will prove that she never misappropriated these funds.

% In fact, as this Court will recall, Cristina’s Motion for an Order to Show Cause was granted on February
22,2019 for Craig' s misappropriation of funds.
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Throughout the entirety of this divorce litigation, Cristina complied with her ongoing
obligation to provide updated discovery, which included bank statements for the parties
accounts. Based on Craig’'s own exhibits, Cristina’s alleged “misappropriation” of community
funds dated back to 2017.> At no point in time prior to settlement did Craig raise this alleged
violation of the JPI. In fact, on July 15, 2019, approximately two weeks before the Decree of
Divorce was entered, Cristina provided Craig with updated bank statements in accordance with
her ongoing discovery obligations.* Again, Craig failed to raise this issue of a violation of the
JPI. Thisisbecause Craig's allegations are simply not true.

Prior to the divorce being finalized, the parties engaged a CPA to conduct a thorough
forensic accounting of the parties’ accounts. Again, if Cristina had been taking money from the
accounts that she was not entitled to, it would have been documented and taken into account
during the settlement discussions. What the accounting did find is that funds had to be regularly
transferred from their savings account to their business account to cover administrative expenses
and payroll. After these transfers were made, Craig would then go and withdraw cash from the
business account for his personal use.

Finaly, the Meadows and Bank of Nevada accounts were discussed extensively during
Cristina' s deposition.®> Part of this discussion was the fact that Craig had spent tens of thousands
of dollars in excess of what this Court ordered on February 22, 2019.° 7 Again, despite having

full access to the bank accounts and being provided with every single statement via discovery,

% |t should be noted that the “evidence” provided by Craig fails to identify who withdrew money from the
bank accounts and simply shows a “withdrawal”.

* The Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Disclosure is attached hereto as “ Exhibit 1”.

> |t should also be noted that during Craig's deposition, he specifically stated that he believed neither
party had violated the JPI.

® This “spending” included Craig writing checks payable to his girlfriend, a check to an unknown woman,
purchasing a boat, etc.

" Obviously, should this particular issue move forward to an evidentiary hearing, discovery will be

required to obtain the deposition transcripts and/or additional depositions will be needed to determine
what exactly was discussed.
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there was absolutely no discussion or allegation that Cristina had “misappropriated” funds. The
reason for thisis clear; it smply did not happen.
b. Craig is Obligated to Pay the I nfiniti Payment

Craig argues that he had “no ideathat he was required to pay Cristina s car payment” and
that Cristina has more than enough funds to pay for the vehicle. Again, thisis completely belied
by the fact that Craig signed the MSA, which clearly states that he reviewed the document prior
to initialing every single page and signing the document. Now, four months later, Craig is
“playing dumb” and trying to evade yet another obligation.

Craig aso states that because Cristina has substantial assets, hundreds of thousands of
dollars in cash, and is employed as a full time attorney, this somehow absolves him of his
obligations under the MSA that he agreed to. Furthermore, Craig's assertions regarding
Cristina's assets is smply untrue — the fact that Cristina had to file the underlying motion in
order to get Craig to pay the equalization payment is proof of this. Even if thisweretrue, it does
not change the fact that the car payment was specifically negotiated into the MSA, which was
agreed to by both parties.

The bottom line is that Craig was obligated to pay for Infiniti and he refused to do so.
Cristina could not afford to make the payments on the vehicle and as a result, had to return the
leased vehicle to Infiniti. As such, Craig should be sanctioned in the amount that would have
been due and owing on the remainder of the lease period.

C. Medical Billsfor the Children

Cristina has been sending the bills to Craig at the only fax number he has provided. That
said, Craig clams that the medical expenses have been “paid in full” as evidenced by an emalil
attached to his motion. This “evidence’ is an email simply stating that the bills have been paid.
No proof of payment was provided and Cristina has not received any sort of reimbursement for
the bills she had to personally cover. Unless and until Craig can provide actual proof that these
bills have been paid and/or Cristina has been reimbursed for the out of pocket expenses, Craig

should be held in contempt for failure to abide by Court orders to do so.
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d. Dental and Vision Insurancefor the Children
Cristina appreciates the fact that Craig is willing to pay for the dental and vision coverage
and requests that he be ordered to pay for the coverage as of the date coverage began and for
coverage moving forward, regardless of the coverage costs.®
C. OPPOSITION TO CRAIG’'SCOUNTERMOTION

1. Cristina did not violate the Joint Preliminary | njunction

As mentioned above, Craig's allegation that Cristina misappropriated hundreds of
thousands of dollars is not supported by the evidence and is, in fact, completely untrue. Again,
the parties submitted to a thorough forensic accounting of all accounts prior to settling this
matter. The final accounting showed that withdrawals from the joint accounts went directly into
the business operating accounts. Additionally, the forensic accountant noted that there was no
way to determine who made these withdrawals. During the pendency of their divorce, both
parties continued to transfer funds between accounts in order to ensure the business account did
not go negative and had enough funds in order to make payroll. The accounting, as well as proof
provided by Cristina, showed that Craig routinely took more than the $10,000 he was allotted by
the Court and was responsible for the cash withdrawals from the business operating account.

Finally, the idea that both Craig and his counsel failed to notice hundreds of thousands of
dollars missing from the bank accounts despite having a forensic accounting and business
valuation completed, is completely preposterous. The movement of money from the parties
accounts was well documented given that both parties had access to the accounts and were
provided with the final accounting and valuations.

Craig has provided absolutely no proof that Cristina withdrew these funds let alone that
these withdrawals were violations of the JPI. Furthermore, had Cristina violated the JPI, Craig
should have brought it to the Court’s attention at the time the alleged violations occurred, not

four months after the Decree is entered and in response to Cristina's request for an Order to

® As of right now, the monthly cost for dental and vision coverage through Cristina's is $51.54/month,
however the premium is subject to change each year, so Cristina would ask that Craig be responsible for
the coverage regardless of the monthly premium cost, so long as the coverage remains the same.
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Show Cause. Craig’s motion reeks of vengeance, spite, and was filed for one purpose: to further
harm Cristinafinancially and emotionally.

2. ThereisNo Basisto Modify the Marital Settlement Agreement

Craig argues that, based on Cristina' s misappropriation of funds (which is an absolute
lie), the Marital Settlement Agreement should be modified to reduce the property equalization
payment.

a. NRCP 60(b) Does Not Apply In This Situation

There is no evidence or basis to apply NRCP 60(b)(3) in this particular situation. Craig
specifically claimsthat Cristinaengaged in fraudulent activity, therefore, heis entitled to relief in
the form of arevised MSA. As set forth below, thisis ssmply not the case and Craig' s requested
relief should be denied.

Craig argues, without any evidence, that Cristina engaged in fraudulent acts by
withdrawing funds from the bank and that, at the time the parties signed the MSA, Craig
“believed he had over $200,000 in the Meadows Money Market Account and “substantial funds
in the Bank of Nevada Money Market Account”. Thisis completely belied by the MSA wherein
the following was specifically stated on page 4-

“As of June, 20, 2019, the parties had the following funds in personal savings
accounts that are community property:

e Two savings accounts at Citibank in the name of Cristina Hinds, account
#2435 and $6145, with atotal balance of $75,190.08;

e Joint Savings account at Meadows Bank, account #0032 with a balance of
$86,039.61; and

e Joint Savin%s account at Bank of Nevada, account #7006, with a balance
of $29,087.70

The parties have agreed to equally divide the balances in these accounts as of
June 20, 2019, which together total $190,317.39, one half equals $95,158.69. To
accomplish this division, Cristina shall be awarded the following: $75,190.08
balance in the Citibank accounts and $19,968.61 from the Meadows Bank
account. Craig will receive $66,071 from the Meadows Bank and $29,087.70 in
Bank of Nevada account #7006.” (Emphasis added).’

9 See relevant parts of pages 3-9 of the MSA attached hereto as Exhibit 2.
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The MSA further stated on page 6 that $66,071 of the above award to Craig was to be used to
satisfy certain obligations of Craig to Cristina set forth in Section 9 of the MSA leaving him with
$36,871 in the Meadows Bank account. Further down on page 8 of the MSA states, again, that
the parties agree to a property equalization payment with the terms and schedul e of payments set
forth in detail.

Again, for Craig to claim that he believed he was receiving “200,000 in the Meadows
Money Market Account and “substantial funds in the Bank of Nevada Money Market Account”
isablatant lie and completely belied by the MSA that was initialed and signed by Craig.

3. In the Event This Matter is Set for an Evidentiary Hearing, Craiq
Should Be Obligated to lmmediately Pay the $291,923.27

In the event the Court is inclined to explore Craig's allegations further by opening
discovery and/or setting an evidentiary hearing on the matter, Cristina would ask that Craig be
obligated to immediately pay the $291,923.27 that he does not dispute is owed. As of the filing
of this Reply and Opposition, Craig has failed to pay any of his outstanding obligations and is
even currently delinquent in his child support payments. Cristina elected to forego monthly
aimony payments and allowed Craig to keep a substantial amount of the material assets in
exchange for this property equalization payment; the fact that she has yet to be paid is causing
her irreparable harm and should be remedied as soon as possible.

1. CONCLUSION

It is clear that Craig entered into this divorce in bad faith and never intended on abiding
by the MSA and Decree of Divorce. As such, the Court’s intervention is needed to enforce the
agreed upon terms and ensure that Craig follows through on his obligations. Based on the
foregoing, Cristina respectfully requests that the Court grant the following relief:

1 Issue an Order to Show Cause Why Craig Should Not be Held in Contempt for
Violation of this Court’s Orders as enumerated in the original motion;

2. That Craig be Ordered to Pay Cristina s Attorney’ s Fees and Costs

3. That Craig take nothing by way of his Countermotion;
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4, That Craig be ordered to immediately pay, at the very least, $291,923.27 to

Cristina; and

5. For such other relief asthe Court deems just and proper on the premises.

Dated this 27th day of November, 2019.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

By
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Nevada Bar No. 14120
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Attorney(s) for CristinaHinds
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that the foregoing REPLY IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF'S

MOTION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE WHY DEFENDANT SHOULD NOT BE

HELD IN CONTEMPT FOR VIOLATION OF THIS COURT’'S ORDERS AND FOR

ATTORNEY FEES AND COSTS; OPPOSITION TO DEFENDANT'S

COUNTERMOTION TO MODIFY DECREE OF DIVORCE AND MARITAL

SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT WITH REGARD TO EQUALIZATION PAYMENT TO

CRISTINA HINDS DUE TO CRISTINA HINDS MISAPPROPRIATION OF

COMMUNITY FUNDS; FOR SANCTIONS, AND FOR ATTORNEYS FEES AND

OTHER RELATED RELIEF was submitted electronically for filing and/or service with the

Eighth Judicial District Court on the 27th day of November, 2019. Electronic service of the
foregoing document shall be made in accordance with the E-Service List as follows: ™

Craig A. Mudller, Esg.
Electronicservice@craigmuellerlaw.com

efile@naimicerceo.com
dawn@thronehauser.com
melg@grimes-law.com
olivian@grimes-law.com
johns@craigmuellerlaw.com
rsmith@radfordsmith.com

/s/ Cally Hatfield
Cadlly Hatfield, an employee of
Marquis Aurbach Coffing

19 pyrsuant to EDCR 8.05(a), each party who submits an E-Filed document through the E-Filing System
consents to electronic service in accordance with NRCP 5(b)(2)(D).
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ELECTRONICALLY SERVED
7/15/2019 2:02 PM

Dawn R. Throne, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 006145

Michelle A. Hauser, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 007738

THRONE & HAUSER

1070 W. Horizon Ridge Pkwy., Suite 100
Henderson, Nevada 89012

(702) 800-3580

(702) 800-3581 Facsimile

email: michelle@thronehauser.com
Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Cristina Hinds,
. Case No. D-18-571065-D

Plaintiff, Dept. No. C
VS.
Craig Mueller,

Defendant.

PLAINTIFF’S TWENTY-FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO NRCP 16.2

COMES NOW Plaintiff, Cristina Hinds, by and through her attorneys, Dawn
R. Throne, Esq., and Michelle A. Hauser, Esq., of the law office of THRONE &

HAUSER, and supplements her document disclosures pursuant to NRCP 16.2 as

follows:

DOCUMENTS

1. Meadows Bank, joint account statement, account ending #0032, dated

06/28/19, attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos. PL09389-

PL.09390.
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Bank of Nevada, joint account statement, account ending # 7006, dated
06/30/19, attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos. PL09391.
Bank of Nevada, Mueller Hinds & Associates, IOLTA account
statement, account ending #2754, dated 03/31/19, 04/30/19, 05/31/19
and 06/30/19, attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos.
PL.09392-P1.009407.

Bank of Nevada, Mueller Hinds & Associates, checking account
statement, account ending #3258, dated 03/31/19, 04/30/19, 05/31/19
and 06/30/19, attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos.
PL09408-PL09454.

Citibank account statement for Cristina Hinds, account ending #2427,
dated 04/01/19-04/31/19, 05/01/19-05/31/19 and 06/01/19-06/30/19,
attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos. PL09455-PL.09466.
American Express Platinum Card statements for Cristina Hinds, account
ending #7001, dated 03/11/19, 04/10/19, 05/10/19 and 06/10/19,
attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos. PL.09467-P1.09506.
Check Images from Wells Fargo Bank account ending # 0085, attached

hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos. PL09507-PL09525.

2
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8. Sierra Health and Life Explanation of Benefits for Elizabeth Mueller,
dated 07/02/19, attached hereto and designated as Bates Label Nos.
P1.09526-P1.09527.

DATED this ﬁday of July, 2019.

THRONE & HAUSER

wh Throne, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 006145

Michelle A. Hauser, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 007738

1070 W. Horizon Ridge Pkwy., Suite 100
Henderson, Nevada 89012

Attorney for Plaintiff

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

A COPY of “Plaintiff’s Twenty-Fourth Supplemental Disclosure Pursuant
to NRCP 16.2" in the above-captioned case was served via electronic service,
pursuant to NEFCR 9, as follows:

Radford J. Smith, Esq.
kstutsman(@radfordsmith.com
ddepryv(@radfordsmith.com
shill@radfordsmith.com
jhoeft@radfordsmith.com
Attorney for Defendant

DATED this /9 ‘%/gay of July, 2019. |
VIS L

An employee of TAARONE & HAUSER

~
J
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DISCLOSURE AND DIVISION OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
4. Warranty of Full Disclosure: Each party acknowledges that he or she hag

made full and fair disclosure of the property and interests in property owned or believed toj
be owned by the other either directly or indirectly prior to the date of their resolution onj
June 20, 2019. The parties acknowledge that they are aware that each party would have
been able to continue to utilize methods of discovery to investigate each other’s property
interests as part of the prosecution of their divorce action. Both parties further acknowledge
that they have performed all discovery they deem necessary, and that they have instructed
their counsel to forego additional discovery. The parties waive any further disclosure of
property, assets or income from the other.
5. Assets to CRISTINA: CRISTINA shall receive as her sole and separate
property, free of all claims of CRAIG, the following:
a. The residence located at 3 Starbrook Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89052,

Parcel No. 190-08-115-007, subject to any encumbrances, indemnifying and holding
CRAIG harmless therefrom. CRISTINA shall be responsible for any and all costs

associated with this property or obligations;

'The parties have resolved all issues regarding the care, custody, and support of their minor children. The
Stipulation and Order Regarding Parent/Child Issues shall be submitted as part of the parties’ Decree of]
Divorce.
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b. Her fifty percent (50%) interest in Two Fat Chicks, LLC;
C. Her forty-eight percent (48%) interest in Jack & Gracie LLC;
d. Her new entity, Cristina A. Hinds, Attorney, subject to any and all costg
or obligations associated with this entity, holding Craig harmless therefrom;
e. As of June 20, 2019, the parties had the following funds in personal
savings accounts that are community property:
1. Two saving accounts at Citibank in the name of Cristina Hinds,
account #2435 and #6145, with a total balance of $75,190.08;
1. Joint savings account at Meadows Bank, account #0032, with a
balance of $86,039.61; and
iii.  Joint savings account at Bank of Nevada, account #7006, with g
balance of $29,087.70.
The parties have agreed to equally divide the balances in these accounts as of June
20, 2019, which together total $190,317.39, one-half equals $95,158.69. To accomplish|
this division, Cristina shall be awarded the following: $75,190.08 balance in the Citibank
accounts and $19,968.61 from the Meadows Bank account. Craig will receive $66,071
from the Meadows Bank and $29,087.70 in Bank of Nevada account #7006.
f. The 2014 Infinity QX880, VIN No.;
g. The parties agree to cooperate to divide the remaining personal

property, furniture, and furnishings, but Cristina shall receive the following:

0 B
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1. Her hammer and her wrench;
ii. The bedroom set;

iti. The children’s furniture; and,

iv. The children’s bicycles;
h. All checking, savings, money, retirement, life insurance, or other
accounts in CRISTINA’s name alone; and,
1. All clothing, jewelry, watches, furniture, furnishings, and personal
effects, in her possession or control.
6.  Assets to Craig: CRAIG shall receive as his sole and separate property, free
of all claims of CRISTINA, the following:
a. The business of Mueller Hinds & Associates n/k/a Mueller &
Associates, subject to any encumbrances, indemnifying and holding CRISTINA harmless
therefrom. CRAIG shall be responsible for any and all costs and obligations associated
with this business, including, but not limited to, the cost of filing the 2018 and final 2019
tax returns for Mueller Hinds & Associates. By no later than September 30, 2019, the
Mueller Hinds and Associates bank accounts shall be closed, including checking account
ending in #3258 and IOLTA account ending in #2754;
b. The residence located at 2429 Crane Court, North Las Vegas, Nevada,)

-

89084, Parcel No. 124-20-810-129, subject to any encumbrances, indemnifying and|

Page 5
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holding CRISTINA harmless therefrom. CRAIG shall be responsible for any and all costs
associated with this property or obligations;

c. The property located at 808 South 7th Street, Las Vegas, Nevada,
89101, Parcel No. 139-34-410-231, subject to any encumbrances, indemnifying and
holding CRISTINA harmless therefrom. CRAIG shall be responsible for any and all costs
associated with this property or obligations;

d. The property located at 38 Glen Avenue, Glen Rock, Pennsylvania,
17327, York County Parcel No. 640000201320000000, subject to any encumbrances,
indemnifying and holding CRISTINA harmless therefrom. CRAIG shall be responsible
for any and all costs associated with this property or obligations;

€. $29,087.70 balance in Bank of Nevada account #7006 and $66.,071
from the Meadows Bank savings account, which $66,071 shall be used to satisfy certain
obligations of Craig to Cristina as set forth in more detail below;

f. The boat known as Mojave Moon. CRAIG owns this boat free and
clear. CRAIG shall be responsible for any and all costs associated with this boat.

g. The 1964 Boston Whaler;

h. 2017 Chevy Malibu, subject to any encumbrances, indemnifying and
holding CRISTINA harmless therefrom;

1. 2002 GMC Tahoe;

Page 6 o
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J- The parties agree to cooperate to divide the remaining personal
property, furniture, and furnishings, but Craig shall receive the following:
1. His tools, including the tools from his father, grandfather, and
great grandfather except for one hammer and one wrench as stated above;
ii. His tool bench that he built provided the he repairs the stucco on
the wall;
il The leather couch in the TV Room, which was his prior to the
marriage;
iv.  His books;
v.  His wooden trains, last known to be in the attic; and,
vi.  His white Mongoose bicycle;
k. All checking, savings, money, retirement, life insurance, or otheq
accounts in CRAIG’s name alone; and,
1. All clothing, jewelry, watches, furniture, furnishings, and personal
effects in his possession or control.
7. Debts to Cristina: CRISTINA shall take as her sole and separate obligation,
and shall indemnify and hold CRAIG harmless from the following obligations:
a. All debts associated with assets awarded to CRISTINA hereunder,
except as otherwise provided herein;

b.  CRISTINA’s American Express Credit Card debt in her name;

Page 7
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C. All credit card or other obligations in her sole name; and
d. Any obligations not specifically referenced herein incurred in
CRISTINA’s name alone and/or with any person or entity other than CRAIG.
8. Debts to Craig: CRAIG shall take as his sole and separate obligation, and shall
indemnify and hold CRISTINA harmless from the following obligations:
8.1. All debts associated with assets awarded to CRAIG hereunder, except
as otherwise provided herein;
8.2. 'The debt and obligation associated with the 2014 Infinity QX80
awarded to CRISTINA;
8.3. CRAIG’s American Express Credit Card debt in his name;
8.4. All credit card or other obligations in his sole name; and,
8.5. Any obligations not specifically referenced herein incurred in CRAIG’s
name alone and/or with any person or entity other than CRISTINA.
9. Payments to Cristina: The parties agree that CRISTINA shall receive an
equalization payment in the amount of Four Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars
($450,000.00) that Craig shall pay to Cristina in cash on or before September 20, 2019. In|
the event Craig fails to pay this lump sum to Cristina on or before September 20, 2019, the
net balance owed to her, which is $427,500 as set forth below, is reduced to judgment,

collectible by all legal means, and shall accrue interest on the unpaid principal balance at
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the Nevada Legal Interest rate starting September 21, 2019 and continuing until this
obligation has been paid in full.

9.1. Craig shall pay Cristina the $10,000 for June as and for the previously
ordered temporary support, which shall not be credited towards the $450,000 equalization
payment addressed above. Cristina acknowledges that she has received $3,300 from Craig]
already for June 2019 - $2,500 in a check from Craig and $800 withdrawn from the
Mueller Hinds & Associates checking account on June 3, 2019. The remaining $6,700
owed to Cristina for June 2019, shall be deducted from the amount Craig is awarded from
the savings account at Meadows Bank, leaving Craig $59,371 from Meadows Bank.

9.2. Commencing on July 1, 2019, Craig has agreed to pay Cristina $2,500
per week, which shall be credited towards the $450,000 equalization payment addressed
above. Cristina acknowledges that she has received payments of $2,500 for the weeks
ending July 5™, July 12" and July 19" from Craig. Instead of paying these payments
weekly, Craig will pre-pay the amount due for July 26, 2019 through September 20, 2019
by paying Cristina $22,500 from his $59,371 from Meadows Bank, which then leaves
Craig $36,871 from Meadows Bank.

9.3. Commencing on July 1, 2019, as reflected in the parties’ Parenting
Agreement, Craig shall also pay child support in the amount of $2,330 per month. Cristina

acknowledges that she has already received payment of July’s child support from Craig.

Page 9 o
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89145 ]
(702)382-0711 FAX: (702) 382-5816

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING
10001 Park Run Drive

O e a0 N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

28

Marquis Aurbach Coffing
Terry A. Coffing, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 4949
Rachel S. Tygret, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14120
10001 Park Run Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Telephone: (702) 382-0711
Facsimile: (702) 382-5816
tcoffing@maclaw.com
rtygret@maclaw.com
Attorneys for Plaintiff

CRISTINA HINDS,

VS.

CRAIG A. MUELLER,

Electronically Filed
12/26/2019 6:09 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUE :I

DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Plaintiff, Case No.: D-18-571065-D
Dept. No.: C
Defendant.

JUDGMENT AGAINST DEFENDANT CRAIG A. MUELLER

THIS MATTER having come before this Court on December 13,2019; Terry A. Coffing,

Esq. and Rachel S. Tygret, Esq. of the law firm of Marquis Aurbach Coffing appearing on behalf

of Cristina Hinds and Michael McAvoyamaya, Esq., appearing on behalf of Defendant, Craig A.

Mueller.
111
11/
11/
/11
11/
11/
111
111
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
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This Court, having reviewed the papers and pleadings on file herein, the evidence and
declaration on file herein, the papers and pleadings filed in this matter, and oral argument of
counsel, hereby enters JUDGMENT as follows:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED:

1. That judgment is hereby entered in favor of Plaintiff, Cristina Hinds and against
Defendant, Craig A. Mueller in the sum of $291,923.27, with interest at the statutory legal rate
from December 13, 2019 until paid in full and which shall be collected by any and all legal

means possible.

IT IS SO ORDERED thigg_( 2day of  Decemked 20 8.

v

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE &

Respectfully Submitted By.

MARQUIS AURBACH COFFING

w Z N

Terry A. Coffing, Esy.
Nevada Bar No. 4949
Rachel S. Tygret, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 14120
10001 Park Run Drive

Las Vegas, Nevada 89145
Attorney(s) for Plaintiff
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WILLICK LAW GROUP

3591 East Bonanza Road

Suite 200

Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101

(702) 438-4100

Electronically Filed

3/27/2020 2:52 PM
L‘ Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COU
WILLICK LAW GROUP
MARSHAL S. WILLICK, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2515
$591 E. Bonanza Road, Suite 200

as Ve(g73s NV 8911022101

Decree of Divorce, and the Stipulation and Order Re: Parenting Agreement and Chila

Phone Oi) 438-4100; Fax (702) 438-5311
rmail@ w1lhcklawgroup com
Attorney for Plaintiff
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CRISTINA HINDS, CASE NO:  D-18-571065-D
DEPT.NO: C
Plaintiff,
Vs.
"RAIG A. MUELLER, DATE OF HEARING: N/A
TIME OF HEARING: N/A
Defendant.
ORAL ARGUMENT Yes X No

PLAINTIFF’S MOTION TO
ENFORCE THE PARTIES STIPULATED DECREE OF DIVORCE
AND STIPULATION AND ORDER RE: PARENTING AGREEMENT
AND CHILD SUPPORT,
FOR AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE,
AND
FOR ATTORNEY’S FEES AND COSTS

. INTRODUCTION
Defendant, Craig Mueller, fails and refuses to abide by orders in the Stipulated

bupport. Modifications of custody and visitation are required; fees should be awarded,

VOLUME II
Case Number: D-18-571065-D RA000227
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WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
[I. FACTS
The parties were married for 14 years before they were divorced on July 29,
2019. They have two minor children, daughter E.M., age 13, and son W.M., age 12.

The parties were divorced on July 29, 2019, pursuant to the Stipulated Decree
of Divorce, and the Stipulation and Order re: Parenting Agreement and Child
bupport, filed with the Court on July 29, 2019. Both documents were detailed. Both
parties are lawyers, and both were represented by competent counsel.

At that time, the parties agreed to a “springing” joint physical custody schedule
vf William and Elizabeth — basically, if Craig did as he promised he would do, he could
sventually work his way from limited visitation to a joint custody arrangement.

He didn’t. On February 26, 2020, a letter was sent pursuant to EDCR 5.501, to
Craig’s counsel addressing all issues and the multitude of ways Craig was violating thej
erms of the stipulated orders." We never received a response, nevertheless the
equested “written confirmation that all of the deficiencies, ongoing violations, and
pmissions listed above have been rectified, will not be repeated, and have been

rorrected.”

II. ARGUMENT
A.  Craig is Routinely Violating the Stipulated Order Regarding the
Children’s Sleeping Arrangements
Without revisiting the whole history leading to the concerns and then thg
tipulation addressing them, the parties’ Stipulation and Order Re: Parenting Agreement
ind Child Support has very specific provisions regarding Craig’s obligations as to the

thildren’s sleeping arrangements while with him: they were to stay only at Craig’s|

! See Exhibit 1.

-
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1 Imother’s home,* where they would have their own beds and a safe environment. The
2 gtipulated order is explicit that Craig shall only continue to have the physical custody
3 pf the children provided in the order “provided that he and the children are staying af
4 Jis mother’s home.”

5 Craig has routinely and continuously had them sleep elsewhere, with the 13-year-
6 pld daughter sharing a bed with her father while her 12-year-old brother sleeps on the
7 floor, or with the children sharing a bed. Our 5.501 letter noted that all of those
8 Jocations and variations were inappropriate (and in violation of the stipulated orders).
9 Craig ignored the notice and warning. On March, 13, 2020, during Craig’
10 fveekend visitation, her daughter’s phone locator indicated she again spent the night at
11 24 Riverdawn Place, Las Vegas, Nevada 89138. This is believed to not be the only
12 further violation since our ignored 5.501 letter.

13 In short, Craig has not complied and will not comply with his obligations as set
14 put in “Phase One” of the custodial order, and has abandoned his efforts to progress
15 foward joint custody, or retain the limited custodial rights he was provided.

16 Given Craig’s choices, his ability to keep the children for overnight visitation
17 ghould be suspended, effective immediately. A daytime only visitation schedule should
18 pe implemented. Further restrictions, based on Craig’s prolific violations of the)
19 gtipulated behavioral order (partially documented in our 5.501 letter) should beg
20 gxplicitly considered; if Craig does not give adequate assurances of non-repetition, his

21 fccess to the children should be reduced to the degree necessary.

22
23 B. Craig Has Not Reimbursed Cristina for Medical Expenses Pursuant
24 to 30/30 Rule as Outlined in Their Stipulated Decree of Divorce
25 Craig has failed to reimburse Cristina for the children’s medical expenses
26 peginning back in March, 2019. He has made one payment of $1,314.07, but still owes
27

WILLICK LAW GRO2U§ 2 2332 Hazel Valley Court, Henderson, NV 89044,

3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101 3

(702) 4384100
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WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

jJudgment of all sums in case he continues to ignore the obligation.

51,485.56, despite Cristina providing receipts and to Craig via facsimile.” All bills
were sent to Craig with a request for reimbursement; he has ignored all such
rommunications.

All such sums should be reduced to judgment, with a specific short pay-by date

as he is already in violation of the existing 30/30 rule order, and with reduction to

C. Craig Has Not Paid for Tuition to Bishop Gorman Where Elizabeth
Has Chosen to Attend for High School

Craig agreed and has been ordered to pay the children’s private school expenses,
He has apparently failed to respond to any of Cristina’s requests relating to where the
thildren will go to school next year. In fact, despite repeated reminders sent to his
rounsel, Craig still refuses to even sign up for Our Family Wizard as a means to
discuss these issues (which is itself a separate violation of the parties’ stipulated child
\greements).

The deadlines to sign up and provide payment authorizations for school is March
p, 2020. Elizabeth and William currently attend Henderson International. William
Wwishes to continue to attend Henderson International. However, Elizabeth will be in the
)th grade, and Henderson International only goes to the 8th grade, so it is necessary
hat she change schools. Elizabeth wants to attend Bishop Gorman High School. Shej
has applied and been accepted.

Payment should be required immediately, in accordance with the existing

tipulated orders, and reduced to judgment in case refusal to pay continues.

3 See Exhibit 2.
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WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

D. Boy Scouts
Craig has consistently dropped William and the other scouts off at scouting
activities, despite Craig being the scout leader. We are advised that the applicable
ules of scouting state that scouts may not be left unattended at activities, and in the
rurrent climate of the Scouts organization filing for bankruptcy as a result of multiple
awsuits related to sex abuse and other failures of adequate supervision and care, that
ule seems unlikely to be relaxed any time soon.

As with everything else, Craig has ignored the notice, and is apparently still
lropping William off unattended. Unless Craig responds to this filing by claiming that
Ihe has not and will not drop William off unattended, his ability to supervise William’s

couting activities should be suspended.

E. Craig Failed to Notify Cristina of Travel Arrangements with the
Parties’ Children

The parties’ Stipulation and Order re: Parenting Agreement and Child Support

iled July 29, 2019, ordered the parties to do the following at page 4, lines 1-7:

Each party shall provide the other party with a travel itinerary (including
trtlp dates, planned destination by address, and an estimated date and time
of arrival back at the CHILDREN's place of remdenqe%prlor to travelin
with the CHILDREN, and telephone numbers at which the CHILDRE
can be reached, whenever the CHILDREN will be away from the party's
home overnight. The party traveling with the CHILDREN shall provide
the itinerary to the other party when the travel FFlans are made, but no later
than fourteen (14) days prior to travel. The parties acknowledge,
however, that either party may make last minute travel plans for short
vacations that do not interfere with the other party's custodial or
designated vacation time, and for such vacations during their own
custodial time, a parent must provide an itinerary at the time the travel
arralmgements are made, or within (12) hours of travel, whichever is
earlier.

Craig failed to timely comply with notifying Cristina he wanted to take the kids|
put of town for Christmas, 2019. Despite that, Cristina allowed the children to travel
o Florida to visit Craig’s family but was very clear that the children were not to stay

n Craig’s boat, because of several safety concerns.

-5-
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WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

The Coast Guard refused to certify the boat to be rented or leased because it
rontains wood and is deemed a fire hazard and therefore unsafe. Further, Craig’s
tateroom is on the other side of the 80 foot yacht from where he has the children stay,
Wwith a separate stairway; if a fire should occur, Craig would be able to escape, but the
thildren would not.

For purposes of this motion, Craig’s violation of the notice provision is most
rotable, but his disregard for the children’s safety (and ignoring of Cristina’s request
hould be considered by the Court in its fashioning of further custody and visitation

prders.

F.  Craig Should Be Ordered to Show Cause Why He Should Not Be
Held in Contempt and Sanctioned Accordingly for His Violations of
the Stipulation and Order Re: Parenting Agreement and Child Support

NRS 22.010 provides in pertinent part:

The following acts or omissions shall be deemed contempts:

1. Disorderly, contemptuous or insolent behavior toward the judge
while the judge is holding court, or engaged in judicial duties at
chambers, or toward masters or arbitrators while sitting on a reference
or arbitration, or other judicial proceeding.

2. A breach of the peace, boisterous conduct or violent disturbance in
the presence of the court, or in its immediate vicinity, tending to
interrupt the due course of the trial or other judicial proceeding.

3. Disobedience or resistance to any lawful writ, order, rule or process
issued by the court or judge at chambers.

Further, NRS 22.100 dictates the penalties for contempt, as follows:

1. Upon the answer and evidence taken, the court or judge or jury, as
the case may be, shall determine whether the person proceeded against
is guilty of the contempt charged.

2. Except as otherwise provided in NRS 22.110, if a person is found
guilty of contempt, a fine may be imposed on him not exceeding $500
or he may be imprisoned not exceeding 25 days, or both.

3. In addition to the penalties provided in subsection 2, if a person is
found guilty of contempt pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 22.010, the
court may require the person pay to the party seeking to enforce the

-6-
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WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

writ, order, rule or process the reasonable expenses, including, without
limitation, attorneys fees, incurred by the party as a result of the
contempt.
The unambiguous Stipulation and Order re: Parenting Agreement and Child
bupport filed July 29, 2019, ordered Craig to do the following at page 6, lines 6-16:
Dad is currently residing in a studio aﬁlrtment. As long as Dad continues
to reside in the studio apartment, Mom shall have Primary Physical
Custody of the two minor children, to wit: William and Elizabeth, subject
to Dad's visitation. Until such time that Dad relocates to a new home near
where Cristina's home, which is located at 3 Starbrook Drive, Las Vegas,
Nevada 89052, near the children's school, and out ofhis studio apartment,
Dad shall have the children in his care every other weekend commencing
July 19, 2019, from Friday at 5:00 p.m., or after school until Sunday at
5:00 E.m. Dad shall only have the children in his care provided that he
and the children are staying at his mother's home located at 2332 Hazel.
Valley Court, Henderson, Nevada 8§9044.
The clear and unambiguous behavioral order is so labeled and set out starting af
page 9 of the stipulated order, explicitly prohibiting (at lines 17-18) name-calling o]
oul language, prohibiting disparagement (at line 22), prohibiting talking to the children
tbout the case (at page 12, lines 3-8), and requiring use of Our Family Wizard
“OFW?”) for communications related to the children (at page 9, line 15).

Payment under the 30/30 rule is explicitly required by the stipulated order at
page 16, lines 1-18. Craig’s explicit promise and obligation to pay for private
chooling is at page 15, lines 3-7.

Craig’s repeated rants to the children, including telling the children that their
mother is “a liar and a thief,” refusal to sign up for OFW, refusal to pay for medicall
expenses, refusal to pay for schooling, his insistence on harassing communications
putside of OFW, and his directly addressing Cristina and others as “dirty lying fucking
runts” violated each of those provisions, and are further acts of contempt of the

tipulated order.*

* See, e.g., Exhibit 3 (text messages from Craig).
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G. Cristina Should Receive an Award of her Attorney’s Fees and Costs

The fees requested are reasonable pursuant to NRS 18.010(b) and NRS
125.105(3). With specific reference to Family Law matters, the Supreme Court has
ecently re-adopted “well-known basic elements,” which in addition to hourly timg
chedules kept by the attorney, are to be considered in determining the reasonable valug
pf an attorney’s services qualities, commonly referred to as the Brunzell factors:’

1. The Qualities of the Advocate: his ability, his training,
education, experience, professional standing and skill.

2. The Character of the Work to Be Done: its difficulty, its intricacy, its
importance, time and skill required, the responsibility imposed and the
prominence and character of the parties where they affect the importance of
the litigation.

3. The Work Actually Performed by the Lawyer: the skill, time and
attention given to the work.

4. The Result: whether the attorney was successful and what benefits
were derived.

Each of these factors should be given consideration, and no one element should
predominate or be given undue weight.® Additional guidance is provided by reviewing
he “attorney’s fees” cases most often cited in Family Law.’

The Brunzell factors require counsel to rather immodestly make a representation
s to the “qualities of the advocate,” the character and difficulty of the work performed,
ind the work actually performed by the attorney.

The supervising counsel is A/V rated, a peer-reviewed and certified (and re-

rertified) Fellow of the American Academy of Matrimonial Lawyers, and a Certified

> Brunzell v. Golden Gate National Bank,85 Nev. 345, 349, 455 P.2d 31, 33 (1969).
® Miller v. Wilfong, 121 Nev. 119, P.3d 727 (2005).

" Discretionary Awards: Awards of fees are neither automatic nor compulsory, but within the
ound discretion of the Court, and evidence must support the request. Fletcher v. Fletcher, 89 Nev,
440, 516 P.2d 103 (1973), Levy v. Levy, 96 Nev. 902, 620 P.2d 860 (1980), Hybarger v. Hybarger|
03 Nev. 255, 737 P.2d 889 (1987).
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Specialist in Family Law.® Lorien K. Cole, who assisted with drafting this Motion,
worked under counsel’s direction and is a Certified Specialist in Family Law.

The fees charged by paralegal staff are reasonable, and compensable, as well|
['he tasks performed by staff in this case were precisely those that were “some of the
work that the attorney would have to do anyway [performed] at substantially less cost
per hour.”” As the Court reasoned, “the use of paralegals and other nonattorney stafff
educes litigation costs, so long as they are billed at a lower rate,” so “‘reasonable
ittorney’s fees’ . . . includes charges for persons such as paralegals and law clerks.”

Mallory Yeargan, paralegal with the WILLICK LAW GROUP, was primarily the
paralegal on this case. She has been a paralegal for a total of sixteen years, assisting
ittorneys in several aspects of law.

As to the “character and quality of the work performed,” we believe this Motion
s adequate, both factually and legally; we have diligently reviewed the applicable law,
explored the relevant facts, and believe that we have properly applied one to the other.

The work actually performed will be provided to the Court by way of a
Memorandum of Fees and Costs (redacted as to confidential information), consistent

Wwith the requirements under Love.'°

IV. CONCLUSION
Based on the above, Cristina respectfully requests the Court to issue the

ollowing orders:

8 Per direct enactment of the Board of Governors of the Nevada State Bar, and independently
y the National Board of Trial Advocacy. Mr. Willick was privileged (and tasked) by the Bar to writg
e examination that other would-be Nevada Family Law Specialists must pass to attain that status.

® LVMPD v. Yeghiazarian, 129 Nev. 760, 312 P.3d 503 (2013), citing to Missouri v. Jenkins,
191 U.S. 274, 295-98 (1989).

19 Love v. Love, 114 Nev. 572, 959 P.2d 523 (1998).
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1. Enforce the terms of the Stipulation and Order Re: Parenting
Agreement and Child Support against Craig in favor of Cristina,
modifying Craig’s custodial time to daytime only and further
restricting it as necessary to obtain compliance with the behavioral
order, Scouting rules, and other matters addressed specifically
above.

2. Require immediate payment of the medical reimbursement arrears,
the Bishop Gorman schooling costs, and all other sums required for
payment by Craig but remaining unpaid as of the hearing of this
Motion. Reduce all such sums to judgment anyway, in the event
Craig does not pay by the ordered date, so collections may be had
without further court proceedings.

3. Issue an Order to Show Cause ordering Craig to show cause why
he should not be held in contempt for failing to comply with the
terms of the Decree of Divorce.

4. Order Craig to pay 100% of the fees incurred by Cristina to obtain
compliance with the terms of the stipulated order detailed above.

5. For such other and further relief this Court deems just and
appropriate.

DATED this 27th day of March, 2020.
Respectfully submitted by:
WILLICK LAW GROUP
/s/ Marshal S. Willick. Esq.

MARSHAL S. WILLICK, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 2515

LORIEN K. COLE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 11912

3591 E. Bonanza Road, Suite 200
Las Ve%as, Nevada 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

Attorney for Plaintiff
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DECLARATION OF CRISTINA HINDS
I, Cristina Hinds, declare that I am competent to testify to the facts contained in
the preceding filing.
I am the Plaintiff in the above captioned case.
I have read the preceding filing, and it is true to the best of my knowledge,
except those matters based on information and belief, and as to those matters,
I believe them to be true. The factual averments contained in the preceding
filing are incorporated herein as if set forth in full.
According to our Agreement, Craig is to have the children in his care provided
that they stay at his mother’s home located at 2332 Hazel Valley Court,
Henderson, NV 89044.
For over a month, Craig has been having the kids stay the night at various places
which includes his studio apartment where our son sleeps in the sleeping bag on
the floor, and Craig shares a bed with our daughter.
My daughter’s Iphone notified me that she was present at 824 Riverlawn Place,
Las Vegas, NV, during Craig’s weekend visitation. My daughter also verbally
verified that she and her brother stayed both nights at this location and that she
and her brother shared a bed.
Craig has failed to reimburse me for the children’s medical expenses, beginning
back in March, 2019. He made one payment of $1,314.07, on November 19,
2019, but still owes $1,485.56.
I have continued to provide receipts and request for reimbursement to Craig via
facsimile, but he has ignored them.
Craig has failed to respond to any of my requests for where the children will go
to school next year.
The court order is that Craig is to agree in writing where they attend school and

shall pay 100% of any and all cost for our children to attend private school. The
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deadlines to sign up and provide payment authorizations for school was March
5, 2020.

Both children currently attend Henderson International. Our son wishes to
continue to attend Henderson International. However, our daughter will be in
the 9th grade, so it is necessary that she change schools. She wants to attend
Bishop Gorman High School; she has applied and been accepted.
Additionally, while our son is in Craig’s care, he drops him and the other scouts
off at scouting activities. Craig is the scout master, and I have repeatedly told
him that the former scout master explained to me that the scouts cannot be left
unattended at activities. Craig continues to leave them unattended.

Craig failed give me proper notice he wanted to take the kids out of town foq
Christmas. Despite that, I let the children go to Florida to visit Craig’s family but
told him that the kids could not to stay on his boat for safety reasons.

I am concerned for the safety of the kids staying on the boat. It is not certified
and has been deemed a fire hazard; if fire occurred on the boat, Craig would be
able to escape but the kids would not.

Craig has told the kids that I am a liar and a thief. He has refused to sign up fof
Our Family Wizard for communication, or communicate rationally or acceptably

regarding the children or anything else.

-12-
VOLUME II
RA000238



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101
(702) 438-4100

6. Thave had to block his calls and messages sent outside of OFW because he has

sent me texts calling me and my mother “dirty lying fucking cunts”.

I declare under penalty of é)erjurif under the laws of the State of]
Nevad? (NRS 53.045 and 28 U.S.C. §1746), that the foregoing is true and
rorrect.
EXECUTED this 27th day of March, 2020.
/s/ Cristina Hinds

CRISTINA HINDS
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that [ am an employee of the WILLICK
AW GROUP and that on this 27th day of March, 2020, I caused the documents

rntitled document to be served as follows:

[X] Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), EDCR 8.05?), NRCP _5(b)(_2)([1\)/} and
Administrative Order 14-2 captioned “In the Administrative Matter
of Mandatory Electronic Service in the Eighth Judicial District
Court,” by mandatory electronic service through the Eighth
Judicial District Court’s electronic filing system.

[ ] By placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States
ail, in_a sealed envelope upon which first class postage wag
prepaid in Las Vegas, Nevada.

[ ] pursuant to EDCR 7.26, to be sent via facsimile, by duly executed
consent for service by electronic means.

[ ] Pursuant to NRCP 5(b)(2)(D), by email by duly executed consent
for service by electronic means.

[ ] By hand delivery with signed Receipt of Copy.
[ ] By First Class, Certified U.S. Mail.
|

] E/F placing same to be deposited for mailing in the United States
ail, Cerfified, Return Receipt Requested, in a sealed envelopg
upon which first class postage was prepaid in Las Vegas, Nevada;

To the address, email address, and/or facsimile number indicated below

Michael J. McAvoy-Amaya, Esq.
4539 Paseo Del Ra

Las Vegas, NV 89121
mmecavoyamayalaw(@gmail.com

/s/ Mallory Yeargan

An Employee ot the WILLICK LAW GROUP

[\wp 19\HINDS,C\DRAFTS\00432050.WPD/MY
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MOFI
DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CRISTINA HINDS, )
Plaintiff/Petitioner )
) Case No. D-18-571065-D
-V.- )
) Department C
)
CRAIG A. MUELLER, )
Defendant/Respondent ) MOTION/OPPOSITION
) FEE INFORMATION SHEET

Notice: Motions and Oppositions filed after entry of afinal order issued pursuant to NRS 125, 125B or 125C are subject to the reopen filing fee of $25, unless
specifically excluded by NRS 19.0312. Additionally, Motions and Oppositions filed in cases initiated by joint petition may be subject to an additiona filing fee of
$129 or $57 in accordance with Senate Bill 388 of the 2015 Legidlative Session.

Step 1. Select either the $25 or $0 filing fee in the box below.

X $25 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is subject to the $25 reopen fee.

-Or-
O $0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with this form is not subject to the $25 reopen fee because:
O The Motion/Opposition is being filed before a Divorce/Custody Decree has been entered.

O The Motion/Opposition is being filed solely to adjust the amount of child support established in afinal
order.

O The Motion/Opposition is for reconsideration or for anew trial, and is being filed within 10 days after a
final judgment or decree was entered. The final order was entered on

O Other Excluded Motion (must specify)

Step 2. Select the $0, $129 or $57 filing fee in the box below.

X $0 The Motion/Opposition being filed with thisform is not subject to the $129 or the $57 fee because:
O The Motion/Opposition is being filed in a case that was not initiated by joint petition.
O The party filing the Motion/Opposition previously paid afee of $129 or $57.
-Or-
O $129 The Motion being filed with thisform is subject to the $129 fee because it is a motion to modify, adjust or
enforce afinal order.
-Or-
O $57 The Motion/Opposition being filing with this form is subject to the $57 fee because it is an opposition to a
motion to modify, adjust or enforce afinal order, or it isamotion and the opposing party has already paid a
fee of $129.

Step 3. Add the filing fees from Step 1 and Step 2.

The total filing fee for the motion/opposition | am filing with thisformis:
X$0 O$25 O$7 O$82 O$129 O $154

Party filing Motion/Opposition: __ Willick Law Group Date: __ 3/27/20
/s Mallory Yeargan

Signature of Party or Preparer:

P:\wp19\HINDS,C\DRAFT$\00432481.WPD/my
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Electronically Filed
3/27/2020 2:52 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU,
1| EXBTS Cﬁ;wjﬁuw

WiLLICK LAW GROUP

2 MARSHAL S. WILLICK, ESQ.

Nevada Bar No. 2515 _

3 3591 E. Bonanza Road, Suite 200
LasVegas, NV 89110-2101

4 (| Phone (702) 438-4100; Fax (702) 438-5311
email @willicklawgroup.com

5| Attorney for Plaintiff

6

7 DISTRICT COURT
8 FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

10

CRISTINA HINDS, CASE NO: D-18-571065-D
11 o DEPT. NO: C
Plaintiff,
12
13 VS.
CRAIG A. MUELLER, DATE OF HEARING:
14 TIME OF HEARING:
Defendant.
15
16
17 EXHIBITSTO

PLAINTIFFFSMOTIONTO
18 ENFORCE THE PARTIES STIPULATED DECREE OF DIVORCE
19 AND STIPULATION AND ORDER RE: PARENTING AGREEMENT

- AND CHILD SUPPORT,
FOR AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE,

21 AND

22 FOR ATTORNEY’'S FEES AND COSTS

23 Plaintiff, Cristina Hinds, by and through her attorneys, the WILLICK LAW

24 GROUP, submits the attached documents as Exhibits to Plaintiff’s Motion to Enforce

25| the Parties Qi pulated Decree of Divorce and Stipulation and Order Re: Parenting

26 1| Agreement and Child Support; for an Order to Show Cause, and for Attorney’s Fees

27 1l and Costs, filed , 2020.
28

WILLICK LAW GROUP
3591 East Bonanza Road
Suite 200
Las Vegas, NV 89110-2101

(702) 438-4100 VOLUME I
Case Number: D-18-571065-D RA000242




1 Exhibit 1. Letter from the Willick Law Group to Michael Mcavoyamaya,
2 Esq., dated February 26, 2020.

3 Bates Nos. CH000230-CH000233

4 Exhibit 2. Medical Billsand Reimbursement Requests from Cristina Hinds
5 to Craig Mueller.

6 Bates Nos. CH000234-CH000276

7 Exhibit 3. Text Messages between CristinaHinds and Craig Mueller; Text
8 M essages between Craig M ueller and Cristina’ sMother, Patricia.
9 Bates Nos. CH000277-CH000282
10
11 DATED this 27th day of March, 2020.
12
13 Respectfully Submitted By:
Wells_ﬁ)_ICK LAyW GRoOuUP Y
14
15 /s Marshal S. Willick, Esqg.
16
MARSHAL S. WILLICK, ESQ.
17 Nevada Bar No. 2515 _
3591 East Bonanza Road, Suite 200
18 Las Vegas, Nevada 89110-2101
702) 438-4100
19 ttorney for Plaintiff
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
B -2-
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), | certify that | am an employee of the Willick Law
Group and that on this 27th day of March, 2020, | caused the above and foregoing
document entitled to be served as follows:

[ X] Pursuant to EDCR 8.05(a), EDCR 8.05(f), NRCP 5(b)(2)(D2 and
Administrative Order 14-2 captioned "In the Administrative Matter of
Mandatory Electronic Servicein the Eighth Judicial District Court," by
mandatory el ectronic servicethrough the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system,

[ ] by placirég same to be deposited for mailing in the United States Mail,
INn a sealed envel ope upon which first class postage was prepaid in Las
Vegas, Nevada;

[ ] pursuant to EDCR 7.26, to be sent via facsimile, by duly executed
consent for service by electronic means;

[ ] byhanddelivery with signed Receipt of Copy.
[ 1 byFirstClass, Certified U.S. Mail.

To the persons listed below at the address, email address, and/or facsimile
number indicated:

Michael J. McAvoy-Am Esg.
4539 Paseo ¥)e| Rz%a >
Las Vegas, NV 89121

mmcavoyamaya av@gmail.com

/sl Marshal S. Willick, Esqg.
AnEmployeeof the WiTlick Law Group

P:\wp19\HINDS,C\DRAFT$\00432354.WPD/my
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Michael J. McAvoy-Amaya, Esq.
February 26, 2020

Page 2

permanently rectified, we will consider that he has abandoned any intention of ever moving
to joint physical custody, and will ask the Court to so find.

Additionally, we are informed that while William is in his care, Craig drops him and the
other scouts off at scouting activities. Apparently, Craig is the scout master. We are advised
that the applicable rules of scouting state that scouts may not be left unattended at activities,
and in the current climate of the scouts filing for bk as a result of multiple lawsuits related
to sex abuse and other failures of adequate supervision and care, that seems unlikely to be
relaxed any time soon.

If that happens again, we will ask the Court to relieve Craig of his ability to supervise
William for scouting activities; he may have to join a different group.

The parties have an extremely detailed and thorough Behavioral Order in their stipulated and
ordered Parenting Plan. We are informed of numerous behavioral issues, including Craig
telling the children that their mother is “a liar and a thief” in direct violation of the terms of
that order (at 9), Craig’s refusal to sign up on Our Family Wizard (“OFW”) despite the
explicit agreement and order to do so (at 9), his insistence on harassing communications in
violation of that direct prohibition (at 10) and his directly addressing Cristina and others as
“dirty lying fucking cunts,” similarly in violation of the Behavioral Order (at 9).

If there is a single further violation of any aspect of the Behavioral Order, we will ask for
Craig’s contact with the children to be limited to whatever extent is required to prevent them
from being exposed to the behavior, up to and including a cessation of contact.

Craig has agreed and been ordered to pay the children’s private school expenses (at 15). He
has apparently failed to respond to any of Cristina’s requests relating to where the children
will go to school next year.

The deadlines to sign up and provide payment authorizations for school is March 5, 2020.
Elizabeth and William currently attend Henderson International. William wishes to continue
to attend Henderson International. However, Elizabeth will be in the 9th grade, and
Henderson International only goes to the 8th grade, so it is necessary that she change schools.
Elizabeth wants to attend Bishop Gorman High School. She has applied and been accepted.

Please confirm that all required payments have been made to the schools in advance of
March §.

Additionally, Elizabeth was diagnosed with dyslexia approximately 6 years ago. She
receives special accommodations from her current school (per federal law) and has dedicated

VOLUME I Docket 83412 Document 292'1'%%9?231
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Michael J. McAvoy-Amaya, Esq.
February 26, 2020

Page 3

learning coordinator, Ms. Deena Wilder. We —and he —have been informed that Ms. Wilder
feels it is critical and essential that Elizabeth undergoes an evaluation prior to high school.
Any high school, including Gorman, where Elizabeth wants to attend, requires a current
evaluation.

Time is of the essence. Elizabeth is unlikely to be successful in high school without a proper
learning plan and some sort of accommodations.

Cristina reports that she found a testing center called the Evidence Based Practice, made
appointments for the intake and subsequent testing, and invited Craig to all events prior to
their occurrence via google calendar (because, in violation of the Parenting Plan, he has not
signed up for OFW). He never responded.

The parent intake was this Monday, February 24, 2020 at 9 am. Cristina paid the
non-refundable amount of $1,800. Craig failed to appear. The first testing was scheduled
for Tuesday February 25, 2020 at 9 a.m, but the Practice would not proceed with testing
because they did not have Craig’s consent. | am informed that they called his office and cell
phone and emailed him the forms at 2 different emails, but never received any response.

This is unacceptable, and presents a stark 3-way choice. First, Craig can — this week —
contact the Practice at (702) 508-9181 and give them his consent for testing.

Alternatively, he can inform Cristina this week of his intent to immediately find a new
center, pay for the testing, and take the child for testing. The reason for the short time
demand is that once the Bishop Gorman Learning Center is at capacity, they cannot accept
any additional students, and it takes the Practice 6-8 weeks to prepare and present their
results.

The third alternative is that he does neither of those things this week, and we file a motion
next week to immediately have full legal custody vest in Cristina given his failure to co-
parent, communicate, comply with his obligations, and adequately look out for his children’s
education and welfare. It is his choice which way this goes.

Craig has now already failed to timely comply with giving notice of an intention to travel
with the children, again in direct violation of the stipulated and ordered Parenting Plan. If
that is ever repeated, we will move to have his ability to travel with the children removed.

We would appreciate written confirmation that all of the deficiencies, ongoing violations, and
omissions listed above have been rectified, will not be repeated, and have been corrected. We will
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Cristina | worked my ass off for
10 years to pay for house and
your mothers building. You
lied. You stole from me. You
schemed. You committed
insurance fraud. You used my
firm for family nepotism, your
knowingly hired alcoholics,
ignored your duties and
blamed me when we were
making less money. | walked
way with less money than
when [ came into the marriage.
| can hear your mothers voice
marry him and steal his money.
You are not now or have no
proof that you have ever been
my friend.

Fuck you you miserable thief
burn in hell you cunt. | am
preparing a bar complaint and
a lawsuit.
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That conversation with you
yesterday was the most
upsetting interaction | have
ever had. | am now convinced
you are mentally ill, a
pathological liar or a criminal
mastermind. Our relationship
went south very early onin our
marriage when | realized you
will say or do whatever is
necessary to always be right.
Lie invent facts whatever. Your
deep insecurity destroys you. |
learned very early on that ever
conversation was the same. It
is not your fault, | told so and if
| had done it it would be
different, except you never
actually did anything except
steal. My instincts are correct. |
will never talk to you again. |
will never be alone in the same
room with you again. You need
help.
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Craig Mueller

treated yol
treated me ke

Just Fuck youl
Miserable gold digging cunt?

Missed Audin Call

Fuck you you god damned
sedfish cunt. | hated
v ‘ inde of my life
with you and your god damned
wack iob mother!

i married you i had $400,000
' wned a house
t nearly done.
1have 45000 I desply L
and owe you $420,000 while |
am living in a2 one bedroom
apartment with a filling

haicinocs
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i am sure | will you wil: spend
all the money | give you and it
will once again not be your
fault. | literally cannot think of a
time you have faken
responsibility for anything. |
would retired on a yacht right
now If 1 had stood my ground
and not married you. Now [ am
ruined to the pint of just
walking away.

Do not contact me, You can
relay offers through the office

Just Fuck vou you Goddamn
dishonest criminali!

PS Fuck your mother tool!

My attitude toward you and
your family has changed now
that | know what truly awful
irailer park dwellers you are. |
treated you like family you
treated me like an employes,

Just Fuck youl
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You dump your old house on
me. Which ! did not want. You
could not care less that you
costs me 20% of my work week
commuting. You put my
daughter in the kid pageants,
over me objection. She ends up
with anorexia. You demand |
give you alcoholic boyfriend,
bouncer a job which he gets
over my objection. | pay him
$80k a year to sleep at his
desk. You steal my money to flip
Marks house and then ask me
for a profit when | offer to buy it.
You demand | represent you for
free on a lawsuit. | pay your
sister to watch my kids. You
refuse to hold a fund raiser
when | run for office, You have
conspired with your daughter to
over charge me for rents. You
promise my father a visit before
he died but did not go. Now you
are kicking me out of your office
after your daughter publicly runs
aff with annther man ales an
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daughter in the kid pageants,
over me objection. She ends up
with anorexia. You demand §
give you alcoholic boyfriend,
bouncer a job which he gets
over my obiection. | pay him
$80k a year to sleep at his
desk. You steal my money to flip
Marks house and then ask me
for a profit when | offer to buy it.
You demand | represent you for
free on a lawsuit. | pay your
sister to watch my kids. You
refuse to hold a fund raiser
when { run for office. You have
conspired with your daughter to
over charge me for rents. You
promise my father a visit before
he died but did not go. Now you
are kicking me out of your office
after your daughter publicly runs
off with another man, also an
alcoholic? | have never been
anything other than polite and
courteous to you and you have
been nothing but a gold digging
selfish birch to me.

Gold digging bitch, sorry
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